City/County Association of Governments of San Mateo County (C/CAG)

1. Call to Order

Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC)
Meeting Minutes
September 25, 2025

Chair Swire called the meeting to order at 6:09 PM.

ITEM 3

Name Agency Jan Mar May July Sep
2025 | 2025 | 2025 2025 2025

Public

Matthew Self County of San Mateo X X

Malcolm Robinson San Bruno

é:]zri\rUy ~ Vice Daly City X

Angela Hey Portola Valley X X X

Justin Yuen South San Francisco X X X

Mike Swire - Chair | San Mateo X X X X

Jean Yang Redwood City X* X X
Elected

Flor Nicolas South San Francisco X! X X! X!

Mary Bier Pacifica X X X X

Patrick Sullivan Foster City X X X X

Desiree Thayer Burlingame X! X X X X

Stephen Rainaldi Millbrae X* X X X

Isabella Chu Redwood City X* X!

Paul Nagengast Half Moon Bay X* X

Greg Wright Pacifica X* X X!

TAttended meeting online via Assembly Bill 2449.

*First meeting.

Noted: Member Nicholas attended the meeting online via Assembly Bill 2449 for the first hour

only. Member Chu attended the meeting as a public member online.

C/CAG Staff present: Audrey Shiramizu, Kaki Cheung, Jeff Lacap, Sophia Palacio, Eva Gaye

(online).

Guest(s): Chanda Singh (County of San Mateo), Hanieh Houshmandi (City of San Carlos),



Daniel Shockley (SamTrans), Nick Yee (SamTrans), and others in attendance.

2. Public comment on items not on the agenda

Public Member Rich Hedges commented on the 19" Avenue and Fashion Island bicycle
lanes project and asked for support from the Committee and C/CAG. He shared the benefits
including transportation connectivity, safety, and benefits for schoolchildren. Chair Swire
noted his support for the project.

3. Approval of the Minutes from the July 24, 2025 Meeting

The Committee did not have quorum to vote. C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier
noted that the Minutes cannot be approved without a quorum.

4. Review and confirm receipt of MTC Complete Streets Checklists from the City of San
Carlos and San Mateo County for State Transportation Improvement Program projects.

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu introduced the MTC Complete Streets Checklist from the City
of San Carlos for State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funding. Hanieh
Houshmandi from the City of San Carlos presented the US 101 Holly Street Interchange
Project overview and shared the STIP application request. Hanieh shared the key elements of
the project, highlighting the fund use for design, environmental updates, and construction
purposes.

Member Sullivan asked if the project on Holly Street is similar to the project on Ralston and
US101. He also asked how bicycles will travel over US101 and how they will land. Hanieh
noted that the project will connect to both sides, with the 2019 design to land on Holly and
connect to Skyway Road. However, the design will still need to go through Caltrans approval.

Member Self noted that when riding a bicycle, he prefers to get from East San Carlos to the
Caltrain station because it is a slower street and riding on Holly is unpleasant. He asked if it is
possible to make that the landing point rather than Industrial and Holly.

Chair Swire noted that someone was killed at this intersection, and this project is a great
response by the city.

Member Rainaldi noted that Holly and Industrial is a busy intersection and agreed that East
San Carlos makes more sense from a safety perspective.

Member Self asked if there will be room for bike lanes on the Holly Street overcrossing.
Hanieh noted that bike lanes are not considered at this time but are a possibility with a
partnership with the Transportation Authority (TA) next year. She noted that this project will
take several years to come to fruition, and the City of San Carlos plans to move the bike lanes
to edges in the short term. For the long term, no bike facilities are anticipated for the Holly
Street crossing.



Member Chu suggested that separate infrastructure is prioritized and completed first, otherwise
delaying has real-world effects. She agreed with the East San Carlos suggestion, preferring
wide, protected bike lanes and sidewalks and narrow lanes for cars, and traffic calming
measures. She emphasized prioritizing safety over throughput, as Skyway ends in a sharrow.
She asked if there is any way to improve the passage.

Public Member Rich Hedges asked how the project is funded. C/CAG Executive Director Sean
Charpentier noted that the project is in the process of securing funding now, and the C/CAG
Board may vote in October or November to adopt the STIP, which includes funding
programmed for this project. He also noted that the project already sailed through the TAC and
CMEQ committees, and the City of San Carlos is also applying for TA funding.

Hanieh noted that the City does have to update the design to meet current standards, and there
will be tweaks but not an overhaul.

Member Sullivan asked if the project would come back to the BPAC for review. C/CAG
Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that it would not return and the City is in the process
of getting current cost estimates. If the design does not change, the Complete Streets Checklist
will not return to the BPAC for review.

Hanieh noted that the medium-term option is funded by the City and the TA and is hoping to
start Q1 2026.

Member Hey asked if the City of San Carlos can implement something quickly, like paint the
lanes green. Hanieh noted that the medium term will include separate bike lanes.

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu introduced the MTC Complete Streets Checklist from San
Mateo County for State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funding. Chanda Singh
from the County of San Mateo presented the Moss Beach State Route 1 Congestion & Safety
Improvements Project overview and the STIP application request. Chanda reviewed the key
elements, including the construction of roundabouts and adding Class Il bike lanes in the
unincorporated area.

Member Thayer noted that the Carlos Street connection would come later in the project, and it
seems like a great connection for residents and school children. Chanda noted that staff are
actively pursuing next steps on that street and cannot include in this project due to Carlos Street
being outside of Caltrans right-of-way and following Caltrans process for State Route 1
improvements.

Member Bier noted that she is happy to see improvements on Highway 1.

Member Self noted that he agrees and it seems we are approaching critical mass to connect
community. He asked if there is an improved connection between Moss Beach and Montara,
and if they connect through a bridge or other means. Chanda noted that the project is largely
within the Caltrans right-of-way and includes a pedestrian connection from about State Route
1 and Carlos Street to State Route 1 and 14™ Street. She noted that there is a separate project



to pursue a new path on Carlos Street that would connect to the Moss Beach Project limits.

Member Rainaldi asked which intersection could have roundabouts. Chanda noted that
Cypress Avenue and California Avenue intersections are considering signal or roundabouts,
but 16" is not feasible.

Member Chu noted that she loves the project, and roundabouts have better safety outcomes
than signals for traffic calming.

Chair Swire noted that there are 14 to 16 miles of bicycle facilities and asked what the classes
are. Chanda noted that there are currently no facilities on Highway 1 in this area, and Caltrans
has a separate SHOPP project, with construction starting in October which will repave and
restripe Highway 1 from the southern project limit through Half Moon Bay. She noted the
Caltrans project will add bike lanes in both directions for 7.3 miles, for a total of 14.6 lane
miles of Class 2 bike lanes. She also noted that this project adds about 1.1 miles, or a total of
2.2 lane miles of Class 2 bike lanes and some Class | pathways.

Member Sullivan asked if there are any studies on safety between automobile and bikes on
roundabouts. Chanda noted that staff are unsure about studies, but Caltrans has a new process
that requires all projects to study roundabouts since they have safety benefits.

Review and confirm receipt of MTC Complete Streets Checklist from SamTrans for the
Countywide Transit Signal Priority — Network Optimization Working Group Program.

C/CAG staff Audrey Shiramizu introduced the MTC Complete Streets Checklist for the
Countywide Transit Signal Priority — Network Optimization Working Group Program (TSP-
NOW). Daniel Shockley from SamTrans presented the TSP-NOW overview. Daniel reviewed
the TSP technology and the program overview, including the existing implementation within
San Mateo County and the TSP-NOW Project approach and objectives.

Member Rainaldi asked what the projected cost is and when the full details will be released
including locations where TSP technology will be implemented. Daniel noted that the answers
are outcomes expected to be produced from this project.

Chair Swire asked if the committee could see cost estimates for future checklists. C/CAG
Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that it is not required for review of Complete
Streets Checklists, and the project sponsors are requesting technical feedback. The projects are
generally preliminary and still in the design phases or studies.

Member Hey suggested starting the process by identifying all information and then sending
requests to vendors.

Member Rainaldi suggested working on the proposal more before approaching vendors. He
asked if these projects would return to the BPAC. C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier
noted that if the project does not change, then the BPAC would not see this again, but may be
seen in a different forum in the future.



Member Thayer asked why there are four bus routes highlighted in the checklist. Daniel noted
that the bus routes included are the most frequent routes and are starting points to determine
how to prioritize TSP in the county.

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that there are a few ongoing projects
happening on EL Camino Real, including SamTrans’ Grand Boulevard Initiative (GBI) Study
and C/CAG’s San Bruno-Millbrae EI Camino Real study. These studies may look at tradeoffs
and how TSP impacts.

Chair Swire asked if there are impacts on pedestrian wait times at the signals. Daniel noted
that SamTrans passengers are also pedestrians, and it is in the best interest to not negatively
impact the pedestrian experience.

Nominations and Elections of the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee
Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.

C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that the committee cannot act due to the
lack of quorum and the item will be moved to the next BPAC meeting.

Member Communications

Member Rainaldi noted that he attended the excellent Safe Routes to School (SRTS) event
recently and was attended by the Millbrae School District Superintendent Hickey and Principal
Kerry Dees from Green Hills Elementary School. He noted that the City of Millbrae is
reviewing their projects to attempt grant funding. He emphasized an educational piece on e-
bikes and information on e-bike safety available for parents on the SRTS website.

Member Thayer noted that she is on the Commute.org Board and their program with the Silicon
Valley Bike Coalition is looking for cities to host an indoor or outdoor bicycle training session.
She asked members to contact her or Silicon Valley Bike Coalition directly.

Member Self noted that he missed the previous BPAC meeting because he was in Bogota,
Colombia, which had an exceptional bus rapid transit (BRT) system for the city of 12 million
people.

Member Yang noted that Chair Swire updated her about two car crashes in Redwood City in
the last few weeks where a car struck a child in front of a school and a car fatally hit a woman.
She noted that Chair Swire suggested discussing what actions can be taken and that the lack of
crosswalks is a safety issue.

Member Bier noted that her community has many discussions about e-bikes, and the Park,
Beach, and Recreation Commission will conduct research around the topic to bring to City
Council. She also noted that the Pacifica Bike Park is looking for funding for a pump track.



C/CAG Executive Director Sean Charpentier noted that at the next C/CAG Board meeting,
there will be a State Transportation Improvement Projects (STIP) approval recommendation
that includes the projects presented today and $10,000,000 for EI Camino Real improvements
in Colma which includes a significant bicycle and pedestrian component. He noted that the
Board will also review the $100,000 TDA 3 transfer from Burlingame to Millbrae for the
Murchison bike lanes project. He noted that last year, staff applied for funds to begin
implementation of the Countywide Vision Zero Local Roads and Safety Plan and the Safe
Streets for All Grant, and staff just signed the grant agreement. He stated that C/CAG is aware
of the e-bike discussion. He anticipated including a chapter or section within the countywide
update of the bike and ped plan, but now staff are looking to front-load that analysis instead.

Member Wright thanked Member Bier for speaking about the bike park and he could share a
three-dimensional video of the project with anyone who is interested.

Chair Swire addressed his comments from the September Committee meeting, noting that he
wants the committee to be able to speak their minds and ensure others feel comfortable doing
so without fear. He noted that his interest in speaking out is to recap and not intended to target
others nor create tension with individuals. He noted that the Committee should make decisions
made on the basis of information presented and not with personal feelings.

. Adjournment

Chair Swire adjourned the meeting at 7:45 PM.



